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From:
Sent: 2024-05-31星期五 10:58:11
To: tpbpd/PLAND <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
Cc:
Subject: Fw: Further Information - TPB/A/FSS/298
Attachment: Assesss from WO HIng Road & ingress-egress.pdf; revised

P5.pdf

Dear Sir,

Please the attached further information of the captioned application. Should you have any question, please feel
free to contact me at .

regards,
Dickson
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Relevant Revised Interim Criteria for Assessing Planning Applications for
NTEH/Small House Development in the New Territories

( Revised on 7.9.2007 )

(a) sympathetic consideration may be given if not less than 50% of the proposed
NTEH/Small House footprint falls within the village ‘environs’ (‘VE’) of a
recognized village and there is a general shortage of land in meeting the demand
for Small House development in the “Village Type Development” (“V”) zone of
the village;

(b) if more than 50% of the proposed NTEH/Small House footprint is located outside
the ‘VE’, favourable consideration could be given if not less than 50% of the
proposed NTEH/Small House footprint falls within the “V” zone, provided that
there is a general shortage of land in meeting the demand for Small House
development in the “V” zone and the other criteria can be satisfied;

(c) development of NTEH/Small House with more than 50% of the footprint outside
both the ‘VE’ and the “V” zone would normally not be approved unless under
very exceptional circumstances (e.g. the application site has a building status
under the lease, or approving the application could help achieve certain planning
objectives such as phasing out of obnoxious but legal existing uses);

(d) application for NTEH/Small House with previous planning permission lapsed
will be considered on its own merits. In general, proposed development which is
not in line with the criteria would normally not be allowed.  However,
sympathetic consideration may be given if there are specific circumstances to
justify the cases, such as the site is an infill site among existing NTEHs/Small
Houses, the processing of the Small House grant is already at an advance stage;

(e) an application site involves more than one NTEH/Small House, application of the
above criteria would be on individual NTEH/Small House basis;

(f) the proposed development should not frustrate the planning intention of the
particular zone in which the application site is located;

(g) the proposed development should be compatible in terms of land use, scale,
design and layout, with the surrounding area/development;
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(h) the proposed development should not encroach onto the planned road network
and should not cause adverse traffic, environmental, landscape, drainage,
sewerage and geotechnical impacts on the surrounding areas.  Any such
potential impacts should be mitigated to the satisfaction of relevant Government
departments;

(i) the proposed development, if located within water gathering grounds, should be
able to be connected to existing or planned sewerage system in the area except
under very special circumstances (e.g. the application site has a building status
under the lease or the applicant can demonstrate that the water quality within
water gathering grounds will not be affected by the proposed development*);

(j) the provision of fire service installations and emergency vehicular access, if
required, should be appropriate with the scale of the development and in
compliance with relevant standards; and

(k) all other statutory or non-statutory requirements of relevant Government
departments must be met.  Depending on the specific land use zoning of the
application site, other Town Planning Board guidelines should be observed, as
appropriate.

*i.e. the applicant can demonstrate that effluent discharge from the proposed
development will be in compliance with the effluent standards as stipulated in
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance Technical Memorandum.



Extract of Town Planning Board Guidelines for Application for Development  

within “GB” zone under Section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance 

 

(a) there is a general presumption against development (other than redevelopment) in a “GB”   

zone; 

 

(b) an application for new development in a "GB" zone will only be considered in exceptional 

circumstances and must be justified with very strong planning grounds. The scale and intensity 

of the proposed development including the plot ratio, site coverage and building height should 

be compatible with the character of surrounding areas; 

 

(c) applications for G/IC uses and public utility installations must demonstrate that the proposed 

development is essential and that no alternative sites are available. The plot ratio of the 

development site may exceed 0.4 so as to minimize the land to be allocated for G/IC uses; 

 

(d) passive recreational uses which are compatible with the character of surrounding areas may be 

given sympathetic consideration; 

 

(e) the design and layout of any proposed development should be compatible with the surrounding 

area. The development should not involve extensive clearance of existing natural vegetation, 

affect the existing natural landscape, or cause any adverse visual impact on the surrounding 

environment; 

 

(f) the proposed development should not overstrain the capacity of existing and planned 

infrastructure such as sewerage, roads and water supply. It should not adversely affect drainage 

or aggravate flooding in the area; 

 

(g) the proposed development should not overstrain the overall provision of G/IC facilities in the 

general area; 

 

(h) the proposed development should not be susceptible to adverse environmental effects from 

pollution sources nearby such as traffic noise, unless adequate mitigating measures are 

provided, and it should not itself be the source of pollution; and 

 

(i) any proposed development on a slope or hillside should not adversely affect slope stability. 
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Previous Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

Application No. Use/Development Date of Consideration

A/FSS/237 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

4.9.2015
(Lapsed on 4.9.2019)

Similar Applications in the Vicinity of the Application Site partly within the same “V” zone
and partly within the same “GB” zone or entirely within the same “GB” Zone

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Proposed Developments Date of Consideration

1 A/FSS/172 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

10.8.2007

2 A/FSS/173 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

10.8.2007

3 A/FSS/174 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

1.2.2008

4 A/FSS/175(1) Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

1.2.2008
(Lapsed on 1.2.2012)

5 A/FSS/176 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

1.2.2008

6 A/FSS/177 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

1.2.2008

7 A/FSS/181 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

13.3.2009

8 A/FSS/202 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

28.1.2011

9 A/FSS/203 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

28.1.2011

10 A/FSS/204 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

1.4.2011

11 A/FSS/212(1) Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

9.11.2012

12 A/FSS/238 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

4.9.2015
(Lapsed on 4.9.2019)

13 A/FSS/239 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

4.9.2015
(Lapsed on 4.9.2019)

14 A/FSS/240 Proposed House (New Territories
Exempted House - Small House)

4.9.2015
(Lapsed on 4.9.2019)

Remarks:
(1) The application No. A/FSS/175 and A/FSS/212 involve the same site.
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Detailed Comments from Relevant Government Departments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/North, Lands Department:

� the application site falls within the village environs of Wo Hop Shek Village and Wo Hing
Tsuen;

� the applicant claimed himself to be an indigenous villager of Wo Hop Shek, Fanling.
His eligibility for Small House grant has yet to be ascertained;

� a Small House application regarding the subject lots is under processing by his office; and

� the number of outstanding Small House applications in Wo Hop Shek (including Wo Hing
Tsuen) is 39, and the number of 10-year Small House demand forecast provided by the
relevant Indigenous Inhabitant Representative of Wo Hop Shek (including Wo Hing
Tsuen) is 132.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T):

� he has reservation on the application and advised that the Small House development
should be confined within the “V” zone as far as possible.  Although additional traffic
generated by the proposed development is not expected to be significant, Small House
development outside the “V” zone, if permitted, will set an undesirable precedent case for
similar applications in the future.  The resulting cumulative adverse traffic impact could
be substantial; and

� notwithstanding the above, the application only involves construction of one Small House.
He considers the application can be tolerated.

Commissioner for Police (C for P):

� no comment; and

� the applicant to reminded to ensure a smooth traffic flow and to avoid undue obstruction.

3. Environment

Comments of the Chief Engineer/ Mainland North, Drainage Services Department (CE/MN,
DSD):

� the site is in an area where no DSD stormwater drain is available; and

� the site is in an area where no public sewerage connection is available.

Comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP):

� for NTEH without public sewers, the applicant should follow the the Practice Note For
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Professional Persons ProPECC PN 1/23 Drainage Plans subject to Comment by the
Environmental Protection Department – Building (Standards of Sanitary Fitments,
Plumbing, Drainage Works and Latrines) Regulations (Cap. 123I) Section 40(1), 40(2),
41(1) and 90:
https://www.epd.gov.hk/epd/sites/default/files/epd/english/resources_pub/publications/fi
les/pn23_1.pdf

4. Drainage

Comments of the CE/MN, DSD:

� no objection to the application from public drainage viewpoint.

5. Water Supply

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department (CE/C, WSD):

� no objection to the application; and

� for provision of water supply to the development, the applicant may need to extend to
his/her inside services to the nearest suitable government water mains for connection.
The application shall resolve any land matter (such as private lots) associated with the
provision of water supply and shall be responsible for the construction, operation and
maintenance of the inside services with the private lots to WSD’s standards.

6. Building Matters

Comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department
(CBS/NTW, BD):

� no comment on the application; and

� his advisory comments are set out in Appendix VI.

7. Landscape

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department:

� no objection to the application from landscape planning perspective;

� with reference to the aerial photo of December 2022, the Site was surrounded by car
parking, village houses and dense woodlands to the south.  The proposed development
is not incompatible with the surrounding landscape character; and

� with reference to the site record dated 16.4.2024, the Site is hard paved and used as vehicle
park.  There is no existing tree within the Site.  Significant adverse landscape impact
arising from the development within the Site is not envisaged.



- 3 -

8. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS):

� no objection in principle to the application provided that the proposed house would not
encroach on any existing EVA under application in accordance with LandsD’s record;
and

� the applicants is reminded to observe ‘New Territories Exempted Houses – A Guide to
Fire Safety Requirements’ published by Lands Department.  Detailed fire safety
requirements will be formulated upon receipt of formal application referred by LandsD.

9. Natural Conservation

Comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation:

� no comment on the application from nature conservation perspective.

10. Demand and Supply of Small House Sites

� according to DLO/N, LandsD, the number of outstanding Small House applications for
Wo Hop Shek Village is 39 while the 10-year Small House demand forecast for the same
village is 132.  Based on the latest estimate by PlanD, about 1.886 ha (equivalent to 75
Small House sites) of land are available in the “V” zone.  While the amount of land
available within the “V” zone is insufficient to fully meet the future Small House demand,
it is sufficient to accommodate the outstanding Small House applications.
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) to note the comments from Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

� site formation works and drainage works and drainage works for NTEHs are building works
under the control of the Building Ordinance (BO).  Before any new site formation and/or
drainage works are to be carried out on the application site, the prior approval and consent
of the Building Authority (BA) should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorised building
works.  An Authorised Person (AP) should be appointed as the co-ordinator for the
proposed site formation and/or drainage works in accordance with the BO; and

� notwithstanding the paragraph above, the Director of Lands may issue a certificate of
exemption from prior approval and consent of the BA in respect of site formation works
and/or drainage works in New Territories under the Building Ordinance (Application to the
New Territories) Ordinance.  The applicant may approach DLO/N or seek AP/s advice for
details.
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